

# PUBLIC UTILITIES REVENUE BOND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO MINUTES - DRAFT

# **REMOTE MEETING**

## June 7, 2021 - 9:00 AM

# **Regular Meeting**

## **Remote Access to Information and Participation**

In accordance with Governor Newsom's Executive Order No. N-33-20 declaring a State of Emergency regarding the COVID-19 outbreak and Mayor London N. Breed's Proclamation declaring a Local Emergency issued on February 25, 2020, including the guidance for gatherings issued by the San Francisco Department of Public Health Officer, aggressive directives were issued to reduce the spread of COVID-19. On March 17, 2020, the Board of Supervisors authorized their Board and Committee meetings to convene remotely (via Microsoft Teams) and will allow remote public comment via teleconference.

Members of the public may participate by phone or may submit their comments by email to: <u>brent.jalipa@sfgov.org</u>; all comments received will be made a part of the official record. Revenue Bond Oversight Committee agendas and their associated documents are available at: <u>https://www.sfwater.org/index.aspx?page=121</u>

As the COVID-19 disease progresses, please visit the Board's website (<u>www.sfbos.org</u>) regularly to be updated on the current situation as it affects the legislative process. For more information contact Assistant Clerk Brent Jalipa at (415) 554-7712.

**Mission:** The Revenue Bond Oversight Committee (RBOC) monitors the expenditure of revenue bond proceeds related to the repair, replacement, upgrade and expansion of the SFPUC's water, power and sewer infrastructure. The RBOC provides independent oversight to ensure transparency and accountability. The RBOC's goal is to ensure that SFPUC revenue bond proceeds are spent for their intended purposes in accordance with legislative authorization and other applicable laws.

## 1. Call to Order, Roll Call, and Agenda Changes

### Members:

- Seat 1 Ettore Leale, Chair
- Seat 2 Lars Kamp
- Seat 3 Vacant
- Seat 4 Vacant
- Seat 5 Vacant
- Seat 6 Christina Tang
- Seat 7 Reuben Holober

Chair Leale called the meeting to order at 9:02 a.m. On the call of the roll, Chair Leale and Members Kamp, Tang, and Holober were noted present. A quorum was present.

There were no agenda changes.

2. **Public Comment:** Members of the public may address the Revenue Bond Oversight Committee (RBOC) on matters that are within the RBOC's jurisdiction but are not on today's agenda.

Public Comment: None

### 3. **RBOC:** Audit Update

Massanda Djohns (Office of the Controller); Dan Dawson (HKA); Eugene Yano (Yano Accountancy Corporation); provided a status update on the audit and responded to questions throughout the discussion.

Public Comment: None

Chair Leale, seconded by Member Holober, moved that the item be CONTINUED to the RBOC Regular Meeting of July 13, 2021.

### The motion PASSED by the following vote:

Ayes: Leale, Kamp, Tang, Holober Noes: None 4. **RBOC:** Amending Bylaws - Definition of "Reporting Period" for the Annual Report

Mark Blake, Deputy City Attorney (Office of the City Attorney); Mike Brown (San Francisco Public Utilities Commission); provided an overview and answered questions throughout the discussion.

Public Comment:

David Pilpel spoke on various concerns regarding the proposed amendment.

# Chair Leale, seconded by Member Kamp, moved that the item be CONTINUED to the RBOC Regular Meeting of July 13, 2021.

The motion PASSED by the following vote:

Ayes: Leale, Kamp, Tang, Holober Noes: None

5. **Approval of Minutes:** May 10, 2021, Meeting Minutes.

# Member Kamp, seconded by Member Tang, moved that May 10, 2021, Meeting Minutes be APPROVED.

Public Comment: None

### The motion PASSED by the following vote:

Ayes: Leale, Kamp, Tang, Holober Noes: None

### 6. Announcements, Comments, Questions, and Future Agenda Items.

Upcoming Meeting Dates: July 13, August 17, and September 14, 2021

Mike Brown (San Francisco Public Utilities Commission) provided an overview on updating the RBOC webpage to remove obsolescent information and providing current information.

Mike Brown (San Francisco Public Utilities Commission) provided an overview on the options for scheduling facility tours both virtual and on-site.

The RBOC requested the following items be scheduled for the next RBOC meeting:

RBOC: Audit Update (*Discussion and possible action*)

RBOC: Amending Bylaws - Definition of "Reporting Period" for the Annual Report (*Discussion and possible action*)

SFPUC: Wastewater System Improvement Program Update (*Discussion and possible action*)

SFPUC: Water Capital Program Update (Discussion and possible action)

Pending Issues:

- A. Request that SSIP Quarterly reports include information on Stormwater Management System and details on the bidding climate and possible cost increase
- B. RBOC: Acquiring consultant to examine expected performance of complete projects.
- C. SFPUC: Staff Report: Environmental Justice
- D. SFPUC: Power Enterprise and Clean Power SF Update (*Discussion and possible action*)
- E. SPFUC: Mountain Tunnel Site Tour
- F. SFPUC: State Federal Loan Updates
- G. SFPUC: Oceanside Wastewater Plant Tour
- H. RBOC: Discussion on the 2015 report, entitled "Evaluation of Lessons Learned from the WSIP Program," procedures and reporting processes taken from WSIP applied to SSIP
- I. RBOC: Discussion on the coordination of PUC Site Tours
- J. RBOC: 2020 Annual Report (Discussion and possible action) (October)
- K. SFPUC: Planning for next RFP's for contracts (October)

Public Comment:

None

No action taken.

## 7. Adjournment

The meeting adjourned at 10:11 a.m.

N.B. The Minutes of this meeting set forth all actions taken by the Revenue Bond Oversight Committee on the matters stated but not necessarily in the chronological sequence in which the matters were taken up.

Approved by the RBOC: August 17, 2021

# Revenue Bond Audit – RBOC Status Update: June 7, 2021



Key Activities: WSIP Vendor Document Requests Services of the San Francisco Takeaways Public Utilities Commission 1. Pay Applications a) May 10<sup>th</sup> – Received all Pay Apps from PUC Finance b) May 18th – HKA/Yano review ed Pay Apps to develop CO Request Progress achieved in all three areas. 2. Change Orders Documentation is in a suitable format (no issues with corrupt or missing files) a) May 24<sup>th</sup> – Received 140 out of 160 COs b) June 2<sup>nd</sup> – Meeting with Alan Johanson, received overview of CO process and PUC and Infrastructure are responsive to our requests. controls in place (DRB, DRA, CCB) c) June 11th - Anticipate receiving remaining 20 COs HKA/Yano Audit Team is becoming more familiar with departments and personnel 3. Contracting Documents responsibilities. a) Received documents for 7 out of 12 contractors b) Currently in review June 18<sup>th</sup> – Anticipate receiving docs for remaining 5 contractors c) 4. Wastewater Enterprise Document Request Quick response from SSIP Directors WWE project costs are not a) May 10<sup>th</sup> – Initial Request sent to Infrastructure summarized by funding source WWE - Smaller construction projects and in FAMIS/PS. Matching b) May 25<sup>th</sup> - Call with Program Controls Manager others in design stages or cancelled contract costs to funding June 2<sup>nd</sup> – Call with SSIP Director sources is a complex process. SSIP Project List is currently being verified by the WWE team Mega Projects are in early stages. Next Steps: SSIP request impeded WSIP document review Finalize WWE Project list and initiate document requests 4. Maintaining Good Communication and Optimism Receive remaining WSIP documents 5. June 18<sup>th</sup> July 16<sup>th</sup> August – September Follow-up requests for CCB meeting minutes and other CM procedures 6. Identify relevant PMs and CMs, coordinate call for audit questions 7. SSIP Docs Audit Draft WSIP Docs



Yano Accountancy Corporation

#### Revenue Bond Oversight Committee Bylaws [PROPOSED AMENDMENT—5/10/21]

# Article IV, Section 2 of the Bylaws are proposed to be amended as follows (shown in italics, underlined):

#### "Section 2. Reports

The Committee shall issue an annual report each year on the results of its activities for the preceding <u>fiscal</u> year (the "Reporting Period"), and such report shall be delivered to the Mayor, the Commission and the Board of Supervisors. The report shall be delivered no later than 90 days following the end of the Reporting Period. All reports issued shall be placed on file at the Committee's office, the Commission's website, at the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, and at the San Francisco Public Library."

#### PUBLIC UTILITIES REVENUE BOND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE BYLAWS

#### ARTICLE I Overview

#### Section 1. Name

The name of this committee is the Public Utilities Revenue Bond Oversight Committee (referred to herein as the "Committee").

#### Section 2. Authority

The Committee derives its authority from Proposition P, adopted by the voters at the November 5, 2002 election (S.F. Admin. Code, Sections 5A.30 *et. seq.*). Terms contained in these Bylaws are not intended to, and shall not, in any way enlarge or restrict the purposes, powers or authority of the Committee. In the event of any conflict between these Bylaws and the terms of Proposition P as adopted by the voters, the provisions of Proposition P shall control.

#### Section 3. Purpose

The purpose of the Committee is to report publicly to the Mayor, the Public Utilities Commission (hereinafter the "Commission") and the Board of Supervisors regarding the Commission's expenditure of revenue bond proceeds on the repair, replacement, upgrading and expansion of the City's water collection, power generation, water distribution and wastewater treatment facilities. The Committee shall convene to provide oversight to ensure that: (1) revenue bond proceeds are expended only in accordance with the authorizing bond resolution and applicable law, (2) revenue bond proceeds are expended solely for uses, purposes and projects authorized in the bond resolution, and (3) revenue bond proceeds are appropriately expended for authorized capital improvements so that an uninterrupted supply of water and power continues to flow to the City and the Commission's customers.

#### **Section 4. Activities and Powers**

In furtherance of its purpose, the Committee may: (1) inquire into the disbursement and expenditure of the proceeds of the Commission's revenue bonds authorized by the bond resolution and other applicable law by receiving any and all reports, financial statements, correspondence or other documents and materials related to the expenditure of revenue bond funds from the Commission; (2) hold public hearings to review the disbursement and expenditure of the proceeds of revenue bonds; (3) inspect facilities financed with the proceeds of revenue bonds; (4) receive and review copies of any capital improvement project proposals or plans developed by the Commission relating to the Commission's water, power or wastewater infrastructure which are to be financed in whole or in part with revenue bonds; (5) review efforts by the Commission to maximize revenue bond proceeds by implementing cost-saving measures including, but not limited to, (a) mechanisms designed to reduce the costs of professional fees and site preparation and project design, (b) recommendations regarding the cost effective and efficient use of core facilities, (c) the development and use of alternate technologies, and (d) the use of other sources of infrastructure funding, excluding bond refunding; and (6) commission review and evaluation of the disbursement and expenditure of the proceeds of such revenue bonds by independent consultants and experts.

The Committee may comment to the Board of Supervisors on the development and drafting of proposed legislation pertaining to Commission revenue bonds prior to a Board

determination regarding whether to submit the measure for voter approval or authorizing the issuance of revenue bonds, if voter approval is not otherwise required.

In addition, if, after reviewing materials provided by the Commission, the Committee, after conducting its own independent audit and after consultation with the City Attorney, determines that the proceeds of a revenue bond program were spent on purposes not authorized by the resolution or otherwise amounts to an illegal expenditure or illegal waste of such revenue bonds within the meaning of applicable law, the Committee, by majority vote, may prohibit the issuance or sale of authorized public utility revenue bonds which have yet to be issued or sold by acting in accordance with the procedures set forth in Article III, Section 11 of these Bylaws. The Committee's decision to prohibit the sale of authorized, unsold revenue bonds may be appealed and overturned, or lifted, in accordance with the provisions of Section 5A.34 of the San Francisco Administrative Code.

#### Section 5. Restrictions on Activities and Powers

The Committee shall not participate or interfere in the selection process of any vendor hired to execute revenue bond funded projects.

#### **Section 6. Committee Members**

The Committee shall consist of seven members: two members appointed by the Mayor; two members appointed by the Board; one member by the Controller; and one member by the Bay Area Water Users Association. The seventh member shall be the Budget Analyst for the Board or his/her representative.

Members appointed by the Mayor and the Board shall, individually or collectively, have expertise, skills and experience in economics, the environment, construction and project management. The member appointed by the Controller shall have background and experience in auditing, accounting and project finance.

Each Committee member will serve for no more than two consecutive terms, provided that a member may continue to serve until a successor is appointed. Upon their initial appointment, three members of the Committee shall be assigned by lot to an initial term of two and the remaining four members shall have an initial term of four years. Thereafter, each Committee member shall serve a four-year term.

If there is a vacancy on the Committee, the Chair shall promptly notify the appointing authority and request that such vacancy be filled at the earliest possible date. If a Committee member has misses three (3) consecutive duly called meetings of the Committee without informing the Chair as to the reason or cause of the absence, such Committee member shall be presumed to have vacated their position on the Committee. Thereupon the Chair shall place on the next succeeding agenda for the Committee's consideration an item to permit such member to appear and explain his or her absence from Committee meetings. Prior to such meeting, the Chair shall cause to be provided no later than 5 days prior to such meeting notice to the absent Committee member requesting their attendance at such meeting. If such member shall not attend the next succeeding meeting then and in such case the presumption shall become conclusive and such member shall be deemed to have vacated their position on the Committee. Thereafter the Chair shall promptly notify the appointing authority of the presumed vacancy and request that such vacancy be filled at the earliest possible date.

#### Section 7. Committee Office

For purposes of contacting the Committee, the Committee office will be physically located at 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244. The Committee's mailing address is 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244, San Francisco, CA 94102. The Committee's e-mail address is rboc@sfgov.org. The Committee's phone number is (415) 554-5184..

#### ARTICLE II Officers

#### Section 1. Officers

There shall be a Chair and a Vice Chair of the Committee.

#### Section 2. Term of Office

The term of each office shall be one year. Officers serve at the pleasure of the Committee and may be removed from office before expiration of their one-year term by a vote of four members of the Committee.

#### **Section 3. Election of Officers**

Elections for officers shall be conducted at the first regular meeting of the Committee in each calendar year, or as soon thereafter as practicable as determined by the Committee. The Chair and Vice Chair shall continue in their respective offices until a new election is conducted.

In the event the Chair is unable to complete his or her term of office, the Vice Chair shall serve as Chair until the next regular meeting. At the next regular meeting, the Committee shall elect a new Chair to fill the vacancy for the balance of the unexpired term. In the event the Vice Chair is elected as Chair, there shall be an election for a new Vice Chair at that meeting. If the office of Vice Chair is vacated before the expiration of a term, it shall remain vacant until the next regular meeting, at which time the Committee shall elect a new Vice Chair.

#### Section 4. Duties of the Chair

The Chair shall preside at all meetings of the Committee, shall preserve order and decorum, and shall decide all questions of order subject to appeal to the Committee by any member. In addition, the Chair, working with the Committee members and staff, shall oversee the preparation of the agenda for all Committee meetings.

Unless the Committee specifies otherwise, the Chair is empowered to appoint members to standing or special subcommittees formed by the Committee. In addition, as stated in Article III, Section 2, the Chair is empowered to call special meetings.

#### Section 5. Duties of the Vice Chair

In the absence of the Chair, the Vice Chair shall preside at meetings of the Committee. In addition, as stated in Article II, Section 3, if the Chair is unable to complete his or her term of office, the Vice Chair shall serve as Chair until the next regular meeting.

In the absence of both the Chair and Vice Chair, the members shall select by motion a member to preside over the meeting.

#### ARTICLE III Meetings

#### **Section 1. Regular Meetings**

At the first meeting of the year the Committee shall adopt a schedule specifying the dates, times and locations of the regular meetings for the next year.

Once the dates, times and locations of the regular meetings have been determined, that information shall be promptly posted on the Commission's website, at the San Francisco Main Library, and at the Committee's office.

#### **Section 2. Special Meetings**

The Chair or a majority of the members of the Committee may call special meetings at any time by delivering written notice to each member of the Committee and to other parties pursuant to all requirements of Administrative Code (Sunshine Ordinance), Chapter 67.

#### Section 3. Notice and Agendas of Meetings

Agendas of all regular and special meetings shall be posted at least 72 hours prior to the meeting at the meeting site, at the Committee's office, at the San Francisco Main Library, and on the Commission's website. If a special meeting will be at a site other than 525 Golden Gate Avenue, notice of the special meeting shall be given at least 15 days prior to said special meeting. Agendas and notices shall be emailed to each Committee member.

#### **Section 4. Cancellation of Meetings**

The Chair may cancel a meeting if he or she is aware that a quorum of the body will not be present or if the meeting date conflicts with a holiday or other responsibilities of the Committee members. Notices of cancellations shall be posted at the meeting site, at the Committee's office, at the San Francisco Main Library, and on the Commission's website.

If a regular meeting is cancelled, the Chair shall reschedule the regular meeting at a date and time that is after the originally scheduled date and time, that is reasonably close to the originally scheduled date and time, and that is calculated to result in the greatest number of Committee members in attendance at the rescheduled meeting.

#### **Section 5. Conduct of Meetings**

All Committee meetings shall be held in compliance with all applicable laws, including but not limited to, the Ralph M. Brown Act (Cal. Gov. Code, Sections 54950 *et. seq.*), the California Public Records Act (Cal. Gov. Code, Sections 6250 *et. seq.*), the San Francisco Charter, the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance (S.F. Admin. Code, Chapter 67), the Ordinance establishing the Committee (S.F. Admin. Code, Sections 5A.30 *et. seq.*), and these Bylaws. Except where state or local laws or other rules provide to the contrary, the Committee, at the discretion of the Chair, may use Robert's Rules of Order as a guide to the conduct of meetings.

When a member desires to address the Committee, he or she shall seek recognition by addressing the Chair. When recognized, the member shall proceed to speak. The member shall confine his or her remarks to the question before the Committee.

#### Section 6. Setting Agendas

Committee staff, at the direction of the Chair, shall prepare the agenda for meetings. The Chair will, as practicable, place any item requested by a member of the Committee on the agenda provided that it is generally received no less than five days prior to a regular meeting. Each agenda of all regular meetings shall contain an item during which members may request items for the Committee to consider at future meetings.

#### Section 7. Quorum

Four members of the Committee shall constitute a quorum for all purposes.

#### Section 8. Required Vote For Approval of a Matter

The affirmative vote of four members of the Committee shall be required for the approval of any matter, except that the affirmative vote of a majority of the members present is sufficient for the approval of any procedural or parliamentary matter.

#### Section 9. Voting

Each member present at a Committee or subcommittee meeting shall vote "yes," "no" when a question is put, unless the member has a conflict of interest that legally precludes participation in the vote. The determination of whether a Committee member has a conflict of interest that precludes participation in a matter shall be determined by the individual member in consultation with the City Attorney.

The Committee may take action on items on the agenda by roll call vote, voice vote, or show of hands. The minutes shall reflect how each Committee member voted on each item.

#### Section 10. Public Comment

Agendas for regular meetings shall provide an opportunity for members of the public to directly address the Committee on items of interest to the public that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Committee.

Each person wishing to speak on an item before the Committee at a regular or special meeting shall be heard once for up to three minutes, unless extended by the Chair. The Chair may limit the time for public comment consistent with state and local law.

#### Section 11. Process for Prohibiting Issuance of Revenue Bonds Upon Determination That Revenue Bond Proceeds Were Spent on Unauthorized Purposes

If the Committee prohibits the issuance of bonds for any remaining revenue bond authorization in accordance with Section 5A.34 of the San Francisco Administrative Code, it shall do so only after proceeding as follows. At a regular or special meeting of the Committee, the Committee, after having conducted its own independent audit and after consultation with the City Attorney, may make a finding that the Commission has spent revenue bond proceeds on purposes not authorized by the authorizing resolution or otherwise amounts to an illegal expenditure or illegal waste under applicable law. At such meeting, the Committee may determine, by majority vote, whether to prohibit the further issuance of revenue bonds pursuant to the powers granted to the Committee by Section 5A.34 of the San Francisco Administrative Code. If the Committee makes a finding of illegal expenditure or illegal waste, or makes a decision to prohibit revenue bond sales, notification shall be delivered simultaneously to each member of the Board of Supervisors, the President of the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission, the Mayor's Office of Public Finance, the City Controller and the City Treasurer. The Committee's decision to prohibit the sale of authorized, unsold revenue bonds may be appealed and overturned, or lifted, in accordance with the provisions of Section 5A.34 of the San Francisco Administrative Code.

#### ARTICLE IV Maintenance of Committee Records and Issuance of Reports

#### **Section 1. Meeting Minutes**

Minutes shall be taken at every regular and special meeting. The minutes shall reflect how each Committee member voted on each item of business before the Committee. Minutes shall be approved by the Committee and be made available at the Committee's office, on the Commission's website, and at the San Francisco Public Library.

#### Section 2. Reports

The Committee shall issue an annual report each year on the results of its activities for the preceding year (the "Reporting Period"), and such report shall be delivered to the Mayor, the Commission and the Board of Supervisors. The report shall be delivered no later than 90 days following the end of the Reporting Period. All reports issued shall be placed on file at the Committee's office, the Commission's website, at the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, and at the San Francisco Public Library.

#### ARTICLE V Subcommittees

#### Section 1. Standing Subcommittees

The Chair of the Committee may form standing subcommittees at any time to give advice on its ongoing functions. The standing subcommittees shall be composed of members of the Committee. Unless otherwise specified by the Committee, the Chair shall select each subcommittee's members and officers, if any, at the time the subcommittee is formed and again at the first regular meeting of the Committee in each calendar year. The Chair shall name members whose qualifications meet the needs of the subcommittee to which that member is appointed. Members and officers appointed by the Chair to serve on a standing subcommittee shall serve at the pleasure of the Chair. The Chair may remove at any time a member from a subcommittee and appoint a replacement member or officer

#### Section 2. Special Subcommittees

Upon approval of four members of the Committee, the Committee may form special subcommittees. Special subcommittees shall be formed for a specific purpose and cease to exist after completion of a designated task. Special subcommittees may be composed of members of the Committee and/or the public. Unless otherwise specified by the Committee, the Chair shall name the subcommittee's members and officers.

#### Section 3. Conduct of Subcommittee Meetings; Reports

All subcommittee meetings shall be held in compliance with all applicable laws, including but not limited to, the Ralph M. Brown Act (Cal. Gov. Code, Sections 54950 *et. seq.*), the California Public Records Act (Cal. Gov. Code, Sections 6250 *et. seq.*), and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance (S.F. Admin. Code, Chapter 67).

All subcommittees shall maintain minutes in the manner set forth in these Bylaws. All subcommittees shall report to the Committee, as frequently as requested by the Chair.

#### Section 4. Abolishing Subcommittees

Any subcommittee formed by the Committee may be abolished by Chair, subject to a vote to reject the Chair's decision by u four or more members of the Committee.

#### ARTICLE VI Bylaws

#### Section 1. Amendment of Bylaws

After presentation of a proposed amendment of the Bylaws as a scheduled agenda item at a meeting of the Committee, the Bylaws may be amended by a vote of a majority of the members.

#### Section 2. Public Notice of Bylaws

These Bylaws, and any amendments thereto, shall be available to the public at the Committee's office and the Commission's website.